
 

 

02.09.2023 

To 

The General Manager – DCS 

Listing Operations – Corporate Service Department 

BSE Limited 

 

Scrip Code: 530907 

                        

 Dear Sir/ Madam, 

 

Sub: Submission of the Integrated Annual Report under Regulation 34 of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing 

Regulations). 

 

This is in furtherance to our letter dated 31st August 2023 wherein the Company had informed 

that the 29th Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the Company will be held on Wednesday, 

27th September 2023 at 11.30 A.M. (IST) through Video Conference / Other Audio-Visual 

Means.  

 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of the Listing Regulations, as amended, please find enclosed the 

Integrated Annual Report of the Company along with the Notice of the 29th AGM and other 

Statutory Reports for the financial year 2022-23. 

 

The said Integrated Annual Report is being sent through electronic mode to the Shareholders of 
the Company and is available on the website of the Company at http://www.sicapital.co.in 

 

Kindly take the same on record. 

 

Thank you. 

 

For S.I. Capital & Financial Services Limited 

 

 

   

 

  Akhil T M 

Company Secretary  

 

 

 

Encl: As above 

http://www.sicapital.co.in/
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NOTICE 

NOTICE is hereby given that 29th Annual General Meeting of the members of S.I. Capital & Financial Services 

Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Wednesday, September 27, 2023 at 11.30 A.M. (IST) through Video 

Conferencing / Other Audio-Visual Means (“VC/OAVM”) to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2023 and the report of the Directors and Auditors thereon and, in this regard, to consider and 

if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

        “RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 

2023 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are 

hereby considered and adopted.” 

2. To appoint Mr. Anil Menon (DIN: 02390719) who retires by rotation as a Director and, in this regard, 

to consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Anil Menon (DIN: 02390719), who retires by rotation at this meeting, be and is 

hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.” 

3. To appoint Mr. Unnikrishnan Anchery (DIN: 00007022) who retires by rotation as a Director and, in 

this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Unnikrishnan Anchery (DIN: 00007022), who retires by rotation at this meeting, be 

and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.” 

By order of the Board of Directors 

  

 

Sd/- 

31-08-2023          Akhil T M 

Thrissur Company Secretary (Mem No. A37465) 

 

Notes: 

1. Pursuant to the guidelines and notification issued by the Ministry of Home Affairs, Government of India and 

in light of circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (the ‘MCA’) vide its 

General Circular No.14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 and General Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 read 

with General Circular No. 33/2020 dated September 28, 2021, General Circular No. 39/2020 dated December 

31, 2020, General Circular No. 10/2021 dated June 23, 2021, General Circular No. 20/2021 dated  December 

08, 2021 and General Circular No.3/2022 dated May 05, 2022 and General Circular No 10/2022 DATED 

28.12.2022 and General Circular No 11/2022 dated 28.12.2022 and all other relevant circulars issued related 

to the same (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’)  and Circular no.SEBI/HO/CFD/ 

CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 read with Circular no.SEBI/HO/CFD/ CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 

dated January 15, 2021 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/ 62 dated May 13, 2022 and 

SEBI/HO/CFD/Pod-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 (‘SEBI Circulars’) and other circulars thereafter 

issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) and all other relevant circulars issued from 

time to time, physical attendance of the Members to the AGM venue is not required and general meeting may 

be held through video conferencing or other audio visual means (“VC/OAVM”). In compliance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations”) and MCA/ SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being 

held through VC/OAVM, hereinafter called as “e-AGM”. Hence, Members can attend and participate in the 

ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the 

Company situated at No.27, First Floor, New Scheme Road, Pollachi, Coimbatore – 642001, Tamil Nadu, 
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India. 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 

& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 

13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of 

the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with 

Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the 

authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the 

e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.  

3. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled 

time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility 

of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000 members on first come 

first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), 

Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit 

Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors 

etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis 

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 

ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast 

vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 

of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of 

a State or body corporate can attend the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. 

6. Members of the Company under the category of Institutional Investors are encouraged to attend and vote at 

the AGM through VC/OAVM. Corporate members are requested to send a certified copy of the Board 

resolution authorizing their representative to attend the meeting by email to info@sicapital.co.in  

7. Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at http://www.sicapital.co.in/ .The 

Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com.  

The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting 

facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com. 

8. The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated 

April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. 

9. Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations, in respect of the Director(s) 

retiring by rotation/ seeking appointment at the AGM, forms part of this Notice.  

10. Since the AGM is held through VC/OAVM in accordance with the Circulars, the route map, proxy form and 

attendance slip are not attached to this Notice.  

11. SEBI has mandated the submission of the Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the 

securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to 

their depository participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form are required to submit their PAN 

details to the RTA. 

12. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 

170 of the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, maintained 

under Section 189 of the Act, will be available electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM. 

All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without any fee by the 

members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. Wednesday, September 27, 

2023. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to info@sicapital.co.in  

mailto:info@sicapital.co.in
http://www.sicapital.co.in/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:info@sicapital.co.in
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13. The Board has appointed CS Sreekrishna Kumar K, Company Secretary in Practice, as the Scrutinizer to 

scrutinize the process of e-voting. The Scrutinizer shall submit his report to the Chairman of the Company 

(‘the Chairman’) after the completion of the scrutiny of the e-voting (votes cast during the AGM and votes 

cast through remote e-voting), not later than One working day from the conclusion of the AGM. The result 

declared along with the Scrutinizer’s report shall be communicated to the stock exchanges within two working 

days from the conclusion of AGM. The result, along with the Scrutinizer’s Report, will be placed on the 

Company’s website and the same shall be communicated to BSE. 

14. Instructions for Remote E-Voting/ E-Voting during AGM 

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL 

MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER: 
 

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual    shareholders 

holding shares in demat mode.  

 

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode 

and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.  

 

(i)The voting period begins on Sunday, September 24, 2023 at 9.00 A.M. and ends on Tuesday, September 26, 

2023 at 5.00 P.M. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or 

in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of Wednesday, September 20, 2023 may cast their 

vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

 

(ii)Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting 

venue. 

 

(iii)Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 

44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all 

shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional 

shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.  

 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in 

India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by 

the shareholders.  

 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided 

to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their 

demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able 

to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless 

authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.  

 

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual    shareholders 

holding shares in demat mode.  

 

(iv)In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting 

facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed 

to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders 

are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting 

facility. 

 

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual 
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shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below: 

 

Type of 

shareholders 

 Login Method 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in Demat mode 

with CDSL 

Depository 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 

existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-

Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login to Easi / 

Easiest are requested to visit cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click on 

login icon & New System Myeasi Tab. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 

option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the 

information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user 

will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access 

the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-

Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi 

Tab and then click on registration option. 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 

Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by 

sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 

Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting 

option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the 

system of all e-Voting Service Providers.  
 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in demat mode 

with NSDL 

Depository 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-

Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once 

the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon 

under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will 

open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful 

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to 

e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. 

Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be 

re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during 

the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 

meeting. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available 

at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or 

click   at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 

enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 

NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 

successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 

wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 

service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider 
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website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

demat mode) 

login through 

their Depository 

Participants 

(DP) 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After 

Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-

Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after 

successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company 

name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting 

service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

  

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 

Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related 

to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

     

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 

in Demat mode with CDSL 
Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll 

free no. 1800 22 55 33  

Individual Shareholders holding securities 

in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 

1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30   

 

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode 

and non-individual shareholders in demat mode. 

 

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders other 

than individual holding in Demat form. 

 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 

3) Now enter your User ID  

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company. 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier 

e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 

 

 

 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.evotingindia.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
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 For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding 

shares in Demat. 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 

• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence 

number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.  

Company – info@sicapital.co.in/ 04259 – 233304/05 

RTA - info@skdc-consultants.com/ 0422 4958995    |    0422 2539835    |    0422 

2539836 

Dividend 

Bank 

Details 

 OR Date of 

Birth 

(DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 

recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

 

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please 

enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field. 

 

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 

shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required 

to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be 

also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to 

vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to 

share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.  

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 

contained in this Notice. 

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <S.I.Capital & Financial Services Limited> on which you choose to vote. 

(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 

“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the 

Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be 

displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” 

and accordingly modify your vote. 

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page. 

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification 

code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 

(xvi) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to 

scrutinizer for verification. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:info@sicapital.co.in/9288007755


 

 10 
  

 
 

(xvii) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Voting only. 

 

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required 

to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module. 

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed 

to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

• The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any 

wrong mapping. 

• It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which 

they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system 

for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

• Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board 

Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 

signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address 

viz, info@sicapital.co.in if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL 

e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING 

DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

 

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 

above for e-voting. 

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed 

after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting. 

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they 

will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience. 

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting. 

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 

Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 

recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves 

as a speaker by sending their request in advance latest by 10.00 A.M. on Friday, September 22, 2023 

mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (to 

info@sicapital.co.in The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send 

their queries in advance latest by 10.00 A.M. on Friday, September 22, 2023 mentioning their name, demat 

account number/folio number, email id, mobile number to info@sicapital.co.in These queries will be replied 

to by the company suitably by email.  

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 

views/ask questions during the meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions 

and number of speakers, depending upon availability of time, for smooth conduct of the AGM. 

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their 

vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible 

to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM. 

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same 

shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such 

shareholders may be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 

shareholders attending the meeting. 

 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:info@sicapital.co.in
mailto:info@sicapital.co.in
mailto:info@sicapital.co.in
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PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED 

WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 

of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 

attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to the RTA at green@skdc-consultants.com. 

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 

Participant (DP)  

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 

Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through 

Depository. 

 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you 

can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, 

Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, 

Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  toll free no. 1800 22 55 33. 

 

 

By order of the Board of Directors 

  

 

  Sd/- 

31-08-2023 Akhil T M 

Thrissur Company Secretary (Mem No. A37465) 

 

Registered Office: 

No.27, First Floor, New Scheme Road 

Pollachi, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 642001 

CIN: L67190TZ1994PLC040490 

Website: www.sicapital.co.in 

E-mail ID: info@sicapital.co.in 

mailto:green@skdc-consultants.com
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Annexure – A 

BRIEF NOTE ON DIRECTOR(S) SEEKING APPOINTMENT OR RE-APPOINTMENT 

(Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
Name & DIN Dr. Anil Menon (DIN: 02390719) Mr. Unnikrishnan Anchery (DIN: 00007022) 

Date of Birth 01/03/1962 19/01/1956 

Age 71 Years 67 Years 

Experience More than 15 years of experience in stock 

broking business.  

Mr. Unnikrishnan Anchery is a Chartered Accountant 

based on Mumbai having more than 3 decades of 

experience in Audit and Taxation and   been playing 

advisory roles in several Listed and Unlisted entities. 

Qualifications MBBS Chartered Accountant 

Terms and Conditions of Appointment Non-Executive Non-Independent 

Director, liable to retire by rotation 

Non-Executive Non-Independent Director, liable to retire 

by rotation 

Details of remuneration sought to be 

paid and the remuneration last drawn 

Sitting fees for attending meetings of 

Board within the limit specified under the 

Companies Act, 2013 

Sitting fees for attending meetings of Board within the limit 

specified under the Companies Act, 2013 

Date of first appointment on Board and 

Date of Last Reappointment as 

Director 

October 31, 2019 

 

September 24, 2021 

December 28, 2021 

NIL 

Shareholding / Beneficial ownership in 

the Company 

NIL Nil 

Relationship with other Directors, 

Manager and other Key Managerial 

Personnel of the company 

Not related to any Director / Manager / 

Key Managerial Personnel except for his 

membership and directorship held in 

Sharewealth Securities Limited, the 

holding Company 

Not related to any Director / Manager / Key Managerial 

Personnel except for his membership and directorship held 

in Sharewealth Securities Limited, the holding Company 

No. of meetings of the Board attended 

during the period 

10 12 

Directorships held in other Companies Sharewealth Securities Limited Amalfi Properties Private Limited, AmdoshiWangani 

Services Private Limited, Hathway Investments Private 

Limited, Siena Traders Private Limited, Outlook 

Publishing (India) Private Limited, Fantasia Enterprises 

Private Limited, Gstaad Estates Private Limited, 

Kanyakumari Investment And Finance Pvt Ltd, Gstaad 

Trading Company Pvt Ltd, Rajan Estates and Finance Pvt 

Ltd, Kaveri Construction Pvt Ltd, Fortune Films Private 

Limited, Sharewealth Securities Limited 

Memberships/ Chairmanships of 

committees across other Companies 

NIL NIL 

Listed entities from which the 

proposed director has resigned in the 

past three years 

NIL NIL 

Skills and capabilities required for the 

role of the Director as identified by 

the Nomination  and Remuneration 

Committee (NRC) and the manner in 

which the proposed person meets such 

requirements 

NA NA 
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Chairman's Speech  

Dear Shareholders, 

 

I have great pleasure in welcoming you to the 29th Annual General Meeting of S.I. Capital & Financial 

Services Limited, being held virtually, in compliance with the Circulars issued by Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India.  

 

It’s always pleasure to place before you the highlights of your Company's performance. Financial Year 2022-

23 was a strong year for our business. 

 

During the year, your Company’s business grew at a faster pace than the NBFC industry. We saw growth of 

over 90% to reach Rs.112.72 lakhs compared to Rs.59.15 lakhs in previous year whereas our bottom line 

improved by 22% in FY 22-23. Despite the emergence of unprecedented headwinds, we continued on our 

trajectory of delivering consistent performance. During the year under review, our gross loan assets under 

management increased to Rs. 510.28 lakhs, compared to Rs. 250.17 lakhs in the previous year, recording an 

increase of 103%. We feel these numbers demonstrate the resilience imbibed within the organization, 

considering the headwinds that we had to endure during the year 

 

We have been growing consistently in all segments, Business loans, Personal Loan, Gold Loan and Forex 

increased roughly by 473.34%, 106.21%, 256.77% and 159.88% resepctively year-on-year, While Term 

Loan and Vehicle Loan declined of 100% and 5.61% respectively. NPA on outstanding loans was 0.54% as 

on 31st March 2023. 

The last year has been another turbulent year with the global economy marred by profound shocks and 

unprecedented uncertainty. The global economic growth has moderated amidst the prolonged Russia Ukraine 

war, even though the effect of the pandemic has receded. Against this backdrop of global uncertainties, 

Indian economy has remained resilient with robust agriculture and services sector. India’s GDP in FY2023 

grew at 7.2%, driven by buoyant investment and private consumption. 

 

Your company is constantly evaluating and improving its systems and processes, adopting technology 

enabled solutions, which will aid the Company’s ultimate goal of responsible lending. 

 

In this FY23, for meeting the prospective financial needs towards its growth and expansion, your company 

has raised Rs.2.075 crores from 33 persons belonging to promoter and non-promoter category through 

issuance of Equity shares and Secured unlisted Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures by way of private 

placement in dematerialized form. Your company has opened 4 branches across Kerala and Tamil Nadu and 

moved the Registered office of the company from Chennai to Pollachi.  

 

Before I conclude, I place on record my gratitude to all the Board members for their co-operation and 

contributions to good governance, I also thank our management, advisors, Consultants and the entire team 

of S.I.Capital for the hard work and dedication. We acknowledge contributions of our consultants and service 

providers and express our gratitude to the Government Institutions for the guidance and co-operation 

extended to the Company. 

 

Let me also thank our shareholders for their wholehearted support. Let us look forward to an exciting journey 

ahead 

 

We seek your patronage for years to come.   

Thank you 
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BOARD’S REPORT 

 

Dear Members, 

 

The Board of Directors are pleased to present the Company’s 29th Annual Report together with the Audited Financial 

Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 

 

Financial Results 

 
The Company’s financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2023 is summarized below: 

 

                                  (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 

 

Revenue From Operations 91.43 58.93 

Other Income 21.29 0.22 

Total Income 112.72 59.15 

Total Expenses 122.45 71.74 

Profit before tax  (9.73) (12.59) 

Current Tax - - 

Deferred Tax - - 

Profit for the Year (9.73) (12.59) 

Other comprehensive income - - 

Total comprehensive income for the year (9.73) (12.59) 

 

 

Results of Operations and the state of affairs of the Company 

 
The company is a Non-Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Company and a Full-Fledged Money Changer.  

The highlights of company’s performance for the year ended March 31, 2023 are as under: 

• Revenue from operations was Rs. 91.43 Lakhs 

• Net Loss for the year was Rs. 9.73 Lakhs 

Operations and cash inflows of the Company for the year under review shows signs of recovery. Revenue from 

Operations increased by 55.15% compared to previous year, operational expenses for the year increased by 70.69% 

and resultantly the pre-tax loss reduced by 22.72%. The company is making sustained efforts to achieve improved 

performance and profitability in the coming years.  

 

Dividend  

 

In the absence of profits, no dividend is recommended for payment this year. 

 

Details of material events between the end of the financial year 2022-23 and the date of the report  

 

There have been no material changes and commitments for the likely impact affecting financial position between the 

end of the financial year and the date of the Report except the following. 

• The company has raised 107.5 lakhs through Private Placement of 10750 Secured unlisted Redeemable Non-

Convertible Debentures  

• Opened a new branch office at Manathavady, Wayanad 

 

 



 

 15 
  

 
 

 

Issue of Debentures 

 

During the year under review, pursuant to Section 62(1)(c), 42 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 made there under the Board of Directors of the Company has issued 10750 Debentures of Rs. 1000/- each 

on preferential basis, to the promoters/non-promoter and others i.e., persons/entities not forming part of the promoter 

and promoter group.  

 

Allotment of Equity Shares 

 

During the year under review, Company has allotted, 400000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each on the premium of Rs. 

15/- each on preferential basis, to the promoters/promoter group and others i.e. persons/entities not forming part of 

the promoter and promoter group. As a result, the closing balance of the Equity Share Capital as on 31st March, 

2023 was Rs. 340 Lakhs. 

 

Allotment of Debentures 

 

During the year under review, Company has allotted, 10750 Debentures of Rs. 1000/- each on preferential basis, to 

the promoters/promoter group and others i.e. persons/entities not forming part of the promoter and promoter group. 

As a result, the closing balance of the Debt Capital as on 31st March, 2023 was Rs. 107.5 Lakhs. 

 

Change in registered office 

 

The company has shifted its Registered office from the jurisdiction of ROC Chennai to the jurisdiction of ROC, 

Coimbatore within the state of Tamil Nadu in consequent to the confirmation of Regional Director, Southern Region 

Chennai w.e.f. 24th November, 2022. Now the Registered Office of the company is at No.27, First Floor, New Scheme 

Road, Pollachi 642001, Tamil Nadu, India. 

 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing 

Regulations”), is presented in a separate section, forming part of the Annual Report. 

 

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 

 

There has been no significant and material order passed by any regulator, courts or tribunals impacting the going 

concern status and operations of the Company in future except the shifting of registered office from Chennai to 

Pollachi.  

 

Disclosure of frauds in the board’s report u/s 143 of the companies act, 2013 

 

During the year under review, your Directors do not observe any transactions which could result in a fraud. Your 

Directors hereby declare that the Company has not been encountered with any fraud or fraudulent activity during the 

Financial Year 2022-2023. 
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Business Operations/ Performance of the Company 

 

The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Services Company and a Full-Fledged Money Changer operating under the 

License of Reserve Bank of India.   

Currently the performance of the Non-Banking Financial Services sector in India is on a positive note.  The Company’s 

disbursements are on revival path and stood at Rs.510.28 lakhs during the year under review, an increase of 104% y-

o-y, reflecting the improved market conditions and focused efforts of the company. Gold, personal and business loans 

increased by 257% , 106% and 473% respectively, an indicator of economy normalizing and overall positive market 

sentiment, while Vehicle loan declined by 5.61%. The income from forex business recorded a increase of 159.88% 

Despite the challenges raised by the pandemic, the management remains committed towards ensuring continuous 

improvement in efficiency and performance, by realigning its strategies, products and process as and when required. 

 

Secretarial Standards 

 

The Directors state that the applicable Secretarial Standards i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India, relating to Meetings of Board of Directors and General Meetings respectively, have been duly 

complied with. 

 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement  

 

Based on the framework of Internal Financial Controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the 

Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and external consultants, including 

audit of internal financial control over financial reporting by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by the 

Management and the relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that 

the Company’s internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively. 

 

Accordingly, pursuant to the requirements of Section 134 (5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of their 

knowledge and ability, state that: 

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023, the applicable accounting 

standards have been followed and there are no material departures from the same; 

(b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company 

as at March 31, 2023 and of the loss of the company for that period; 

(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 

detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  

(e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and 

(f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

 

Corporate Governance 

 

The Company is committed to maintain high standards of Corporate Governance. The Report on Corporate 

Governance as stipulated under the Listing Regulations forms part of this Annual Report. Since Regulation 15 of 

Listing Regulations is applicable to the Company, Certificate from Statutory Auditor/ Practicing Company Secretary 

regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance was not obtained. 
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Risk Management 

 

Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 21 and Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI LODR), the Company has constituted a Risk Management 

Committee (RMC), consisting of Board members and senior executives of the Company. 

 

The Company has in place a Risk Management framework to identify, and evaluate business risks and challenges cross 

the Company, both at the corporate level and also separately for each business division. The Company has a robust 

process for managing the key risks overseen by the RMC. As part of this process, the Company has identified the risks 

with the highest impact and then assigned a likely probability of occurrence. Mitigation plans for each risk have also 

been put in place and are reviewed by the management every six months before presenting to the RMC. The RMC has 

set out a review process to report to the Board on the progress of the initiatives for the major risks of each of the 

businesses.  

 

The Company has a Board of Directors approved Risk Management Policy which may be accessed on the Company’s 

website at the link http://www.sicapital.co.in/pdf/policies/risk%20management%20policy.pdf 

 

Internal Control systems and adequacy 

 

The Company’s internal control system is properly placed and strengthened taking into account the nature of business 

and size of operations. Periodic audits provide reasonable assurance that the Company’s internal financial controls are 

adequate. 

 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

 

The Board Composition as on March 31, 2023 is as follows: 

 

S. No. Name of Directors Designation 

1 Mr. Sreeram Gopinathan Nair Managing Director 

2 Mr. Thandassery Balachandran Ramakrishnan Non-Executive Director 

3 CA Unnikrishnan Anchery Non-Executive Director 

4 Dr. Anil Menon Non-Executive Director 

5 Mrs. Jitha Chummar Non-Executive Director 

6 Mr. Anu Thomas Cheriyan Non-Executive Director 

7 Mr. Paul K K Additional Non-Executive Director 

8 Mr. Rajesh Narayan Pillai Non-Executive Independent Director 

9 Mr. Vinod Manazhy Non-Executive Independent Director 

10 Mr. Abraham George Non-Executive Independent Director 

11 Dr. Habeeb Rahiman Non-Executive Independent Director 

12 Mr. Thomas Jacob Non-Executive Independent Director 

 

Change in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel during the year 2021-22 

 

a) CS Aneetta C Vilson resigned from the office of Company Secretary w.e.f. April 30, 2022. 

b) CS Anu Jaya was appointed as Company Secretary w.e.f May 13, 2022 

c) Mr. Thomas Jacob was appointed as an Additional and Independent Director w.e.f June 13, 2022 

d) Mr. Anu Thomas Cheriyan was appointed as an Additional Director of the company w.e.f June 13, 2022 

e) Designation of Mr Unnikrishnan Anchery was changed from Additional Director to Non-Executive Director 

on September 16, 2022. 

f) Designation of Mr. Anu Thomas Cheriyan was changed from Additional Director to Non Executive Director 

on September 16, 2022. 

http://www.sicapital.co.in/pdf/policies/risk%20management%20policy.pdf
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g) Designation of Mr. Abraham George was changed from Additional & Independent Director to Independent 

Director on September 16, 2022. 

h) Designation of Mr. Habeeb Rahiman was changed from Additional & Independent Director to Independent 

Director on September 16, 2022. 

i) Designation of Mr. Thomas Jacob was changed from Additional & Independent Director to Independent 

Director on September 16, 2022. 

j) CS Anu Jaya resigned from the office of Company Seretary w.e.f October 10, 2022. 

k) CS Akhil T M was appointed as Company Secretary w.e.f October 11, 2022 

l) Mr.K K Paul was appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f. February 07, 2023. 

 

Change in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel after the financial year 2022-23 and upto the date of report 

 

a) Designation of Mr. K K Paul was changed from Additional Director to Non-Executive Director w.e.f May 06, 

2023 

b) Mr. Habeeb Rahiman resigned to be Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f 02nd June 2023. 

 

Declaration of Independent Directors 

 

The Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet criteria as mentioned in Section 149 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Act, 2015 by submitting a Declaration towards this 

end to the Company. 

 

Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties 

 

In line with the requirements of the Act and the SEBI LODR, the Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party 

Transactions. All contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related 

parties were in its ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. Particulars of material contracts/ 

arrangements with related parties are annexed with this report in Form AOC-2 as Annexure – I.  Members may refer 

to Note 39 to the Financial Statement which sets out related party disclosures pursuant to Ind AS. 

The Policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website and can 

be accessed at http://www.sicapital.co.in/pdf/policies/Related%20Party%20Transaction%20Policy.pdf 

Investors/Policies 

 

Nomination & Remuneration Policy 

 

The Board of Directors has adopted a policy on comprising of criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes, 

and independence of Directors as laid down by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board in 

compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act. The Policy is available on Company’s website and can be 

accessed at  http://www.sicapital.co.in/pdf/policies/Nomination%20&%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf  

 

The Board has made a formal evaluation of its own performance, committees of the Board and Independent Directors 

as per the above policy and is satisfactory over its performance. 

 

Auditors and Auditors’ Report 

a) Statutory Auditor 

M/s. Ayyar & Cherian, Chartered Accountant, (Firm Registration No. 000284S), appointed for a term of 5 (five) 

consecutive years at the Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2020, continues as Statutory Auditor of 

the Company. The notes annexed to the Financial Statements referred in the Independent Auditors’ Reports are 

self- explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The Auditor’s Report does not contain any 

qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.  

There were no frauds reported by the statutory auditors to Audit Committee or Board under Section 143 of the 

Act. 

http://www.sicapital.co.in/pdf/policies/Related%20Party%20Transaction%20Policy.pdf
http://www.sicapital.co.in/pdf/policies/Nomination%20&%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf
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b) Secretarial Auditor 

The Board appointed M/s. Liya & Associates, Company Secretary in practice (CP No. 19314) to conduct 

Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2022-23. Secretarial audit report for year ended on March 31, 2023 is 

annexed herewith and marked as Annexure – II to this Report.  
 

Meetings of the Board 

 

12 Meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year. The particulars of the meeting held and attended by 

each Director are detailed in the Corporate Governance Report. 

 

Committees of the Board 

 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 177 & 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board constituted Audit 

Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The Company has 

also constituted Risk Management Committee, pursuant to Scale Based Regulations issued by the Reserve Bank of 

India. The details of composition of committees and their meetings and attendance of members are given in the 

Corporate Governance Report. 

 

Vigil Mechanism 

 

The Company has established a robust Vigil Mechanism and a Whistleblower policy in accordance with the provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. The Whistle Blower Policy & Vigil mechanism is available on 

company’s website and can be accessed at - 
http://www.sicapital.co.in/pdf/policies/Whistle%20Blower%20Policy%20&%20Vigil%20Mechanism.pdf  
 

Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace 

 

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace. During the Financial Year 2022-23, the 

Company has not received any complaints.  

 

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments made on under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 

There were no loans or guarantees made by the Company under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the 

year under review. The particulars of Investments made by the Company are given in Note 11 to the Financial 

Statements.The company has accepted a inter corporate loan from M/s Sharewealth Chits Limited to meet the 

operational needs of the company. 

 

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

 

The Company has taken reasonable steps to conserve energy by supporting go green initiatives. The Company follows 

the practice of purchasing energy efficient electrical/ electronic equipments for its operations. The Capital Investment 

on energy conservation equipment is nil. 

The Company is making use of the technology platform to ease of operations and to provide better services to its 

customers. 

There were no Foreign Exchange Inflow and Outflow during the year under review. 

 

Annual Return 

The Annual Return as required under Section 92 and Section 134 the Act read with Rule 12 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is available on the Company’s website at 
http://www.sicapital.co.in/pdf/annual-returns/Annual%20Return%202022-23.pdf  
 

 

 

http://www.sicapital.co.in/pdf/policies/Whistle%20Blower%20Policy%20&%20Vigil%20Mechanism.pdf
http://www.sicapital.co.in/pdf/annual-returns/Annual%20Return%202022-23.pdf
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Particulars of employees and related disclosures 

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company is annexed herewith as Annexure III. 

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing the names of the top ten employees in 

terms of remuneration drawn forms part of this Report. Having regard to the provisions of the second proviso to Section 

136(1) of the Act and as advised, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being sent to the members 

of the Company. Any member interested in obtaining such information may address their email to info@sicapital.co.in. 

 

Listing with Stock Exchange 

The Company has paid Annual Listing Fee for the FY 2022-23 to BSE Limited wherein the Company’s shares are 

listed. 

 

Compliance with NBFC Regulation 

The Company has complied with the regulatory provisions of the Reserve Bank of India applicable to Non-Banking 

Financial Company – Non Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company. The Company has not accepted 

Public Deposits during the year under review.  

No Gold Auction happened this FY 2022-23 

 

General 

The Board of Directors state that no disclosure or reporting in respect of the following matters as there were no 

transactions on these matters or as the provisions were not applicable to the Company during the year under review: 

a) Details related to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act 

b) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise 

c) Issue of shares to employees of the Company under any Employees’ Stock Option Scheme 

d) Buyback of shares 

e) Significant or material orders passed by Regulators / Court / Tribunals impacting the going concern status and 

company’s operation in future  

f) Change in the nature of business in the Company. 

g) Proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 

h) Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives by the Company and constitution of CSR committee 

i) Transfer of amount to Reserves 

j) Transfer of Unclaimed dividend/ shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) 

k) Particulars of Associate, Subsidiary and Joint Venture 

l) Maintenance of Cost Records  

m) Statement of deviation(s) or variation(s) in use of issue proceeds 

n) Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications 

 

Acknowledgements 

Your directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the commitment extended by the employees of the 

Company during the year. Further, the Directors also wish to place on record the support which the Company has 

received from its promoters, shareholders, bankers, business associates, vendors and customers of the Company 

 

 

 

 

Date: 31-08-2023 

Place : Thrissur 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

Sd/- 
Vinod Manazhy  

Chairman  

DIN: 08986929 

 

 

 

 

mailto:info@sicapital.co.in
https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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Annexure - I 

FORM NO. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014 

 

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub 

section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso 

thereto. 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL 

 

Particulars Details 

Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 

Nil 

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction 

Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/transaction 

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements 

or transaction including the value, if any 

Date of approval by the Board 

Amount paid as advances, if any 

 

2.    Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis: 

 

Particulars Details 

Name (s) of the related 

party & nature of 

relationship 

Sharewealth Securities Limited 

Holding Company 

 

Mr. Anoop Jolly 

Relative of Director 

Nature of contracts/ 

arrangements/ transaction 

Amount paid for 

purchase of Liquid 

Fund for S.I.Capital & 

Financial Services 

Limited 

Amount received on 

Sale of Liquid Fund 

by S.I.Capital & 

Financial Services 

Limited 

Interest paid on 

Subordinated 

Debt 

Rent paid 

Duration of the contracts/ 

arrangements/ transaction 

Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing 11 months 

Salient terms of the 

contracts or arrangements 

or transaction including the 

value, if any 

Rs. 85 lakhs Rs. 117.51 Lakhs Rs.0.53 lakhs Rs. 1.80 Lakhs 

Date of approval by the 

Board 

13-05-2022 13-05-2022 13-05-2022 13-05-2022 

Amount paid as advances, 

if any 

No No No No 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 31-08-2023 

Place : Thrissur 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

 
Vinod Manazhy  

Chairman  

DIN: 08986929 

 

https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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Annexure - II 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Member 

S.I.Capital & Financial Services Limited 

CIN : L67190TZ1994PLC040490 

N0.27, First Floor, New Scheme Road, Pollachi, Coimbatore, Tamilnadu 642001 

 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate practices by S.I.Capital & Financial Services Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit 

was conducted in a manner that provided me reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 

compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the company  and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised 

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion , the Company has , during 

the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 complied with the Statutory provisions listed 

hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, 

in the manner and subject to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 

 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the provisions of; 

 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

2. The Securities Contracts ( Regulation) Act, 1956(SCRA) and the rules made there under; 

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-law framed hereunder; 

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment; 

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India , 1992 

( ‘ SEBI Act’); 

1. The Securities and Exchange Board of India( Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

2. The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 

3. The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018; 

4. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefit) Regulations,2014; 

5. The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

6. The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Registration to an Issue and Share Transfers Agents ) 

Regulations, 1993; 

7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 

8. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities ) Regulations, 1998; 

9. Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 
 

6. The following laws, regulations, directions, orders applicable specifically to the Company: 

i. The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 
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ii. Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial Company Returns (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 

iii. Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit 

taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clause of the following; 
 

I. The Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 

II. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited 

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc mentioned. 

 

On the basis of the information and explanation provided, the Company had no transaction during the period under 

Audit requiring the compliance of applicable provisions of Act / Regulations / Directions as mentioned above in respect 

of: 
 

i. Foreign Direct Investment, External Commercial Borrowings and Overseas Direct Investment. 

ii. Buy-back of securities. 

 

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 

Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 

sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarification 

on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

All decision at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the 

Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 
 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

For Liya and Associates 

 

 

 

 

Liya Antony 

(Practicing Company Secretary)  

       Proprietor 

ACS:  39611, CP: 19314 

Peer Review Certificate no. 2482/2022   

 

Place: Ernakulam 

Date: 19/07/2023 

UDIN : A039611E000640233 

 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “ANNEXURE A” and forms an integral 

part if this report. 
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“ANNEXURE A” 

 

To, 

The Member 

S.I.Capital & Financial Services Limited 

CIN : L67190TZ1994PLC040490 

N0.27, First Floor, New Scheme Road, Pollachi, Coimbatore, Tamilnadu 642001 

 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility 

is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on the test basis to ensure that 

correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide 

a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the 

Company. 

 

4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happenings of events etc. 

 

5. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

Further compliance of Act, Regulations, Directions listed under Para (vi) of the report is limited to issue of 

securities, corporate governance aspects and filing of forms and returns there under. 

 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of efficacy 

or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  

 

For Liya and Associates 

 

 

Liya Antony 

(Practicing Company Secretary)  

       Proprietor 

ACS:  39611, CP: 19314 

Peer Review Certificate no. 2482/2022   

 

Place: Ernakulam 

Date: 19.07.2023 

 

UDIN : A039611E000640233 
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Annexure - III 

Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of managerial personnel) Rules, 2014 

 

i. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company 

for the financial year 2022-23: 

Name of Director Ratio of the remuneration to the 

median remuneration of employees 

Mr. Sreeram Gopinathan Nair, Managing Director 0.55:1 

 

ii. Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive officer, 

Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the Financial Year 2022-23: 

Name of Director/ Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) Percentage increase or decrease in 

remuneration 

Mr. Sreeram Gopinathan Nair, Managing Director 0% 

Ms. Aneetta C Vilson, Company Secretary* -83.33% 

Mr. Akhilesh Gopinath, Chief Financial Officer** NA 

Mr.Ajeesh Karekkattil Antony, Chief Financial 

Officer*** 189.52 % 

      Mr. Anu Jaya, Company Secretary****             NA  

      Mr. Akhil T M, Company Secretary*****             NA 

Notes : 

1. *Resigned w.e.f April 30, 2022 

2. ** No remuneration for this FY 

3. ***Joined w.e.f. January 01, 2022 so there is no increase in the monthly remuneration 

4. **** Joined wef 13th May 2022 and resigned wef 10th October 2022 

5. ***** Joined wef 11th October 2022 

iii. Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2022-23: -1.73% 

iv. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 21 employees as on March 31, 2023 

v. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in 

the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and 

justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 

remuneration 

Percentage increase in Salary of employee other than managerial personnel 140% 

Percentage increase in Salary of Managerial Personnel 

Justification for percentage increase in managerial remuneration 

Exceptional circumstance for increase in managerial remuneration 

Nil 

N.A. 

N.A. 

vi. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration Policy of the Company: 

The remuneration paid to the Directors and Key managerial Personnel are as per the Nomination & 

Remuneration Policy of the Company 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 31-08-2023 

Place : Thrissur 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

 
Vinod Manazhy  

Chairman  

DIN: 08986929 

https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do


 

 26 
  

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

The report on Corporate Governance is pursuant to Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the SEBI LODR). The Company has complied with the 

applicable requirements of the SEBI LODR and amendments thereto. The Board present the Company’s Report on 

Corporate Governance for the financial year 2022-23. 

 

Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance 

 

Corporate Governance is indispensable for the profitability, growth and survival of a company through creation and 

enhancement of value to stakeholders. The Company believes that robust corporate governance system based on trust 

and relationship building will endure value to all stakeholders. Corporate Governance Philosophy envisages striving 

for excellence in all facets of its operations through socially and environmentally acceptable means. The Company wants 

to be a responsible corporate citizen and share the benefits with society and also will make its customers, employees, 

suppliers, shareholders and other stakeholders feel proud of their association with the Company through highest level 

of fairness and transparency in its dealings.  

 

Board of Directors 

 

a. Composition of the Board 

 

As on March 31, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Company comprised of 12 (Twelve) Directors. The categories of 

Directors are detailed below. The Composition of the Board as mentioned in Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) is not applicable to the Company 

as the Company has not crossed the threshold mentioned in Regulation 15 of the Listing Regulations. 

                                                                                                                As on March 31, 2023 

Name of the Director Category 

Mr. Sreeram Gopinathan Nair Managing Director 

Mr. Thandassery Balachandran Ramakrishnan Non-Executive Director 

CA Unnikrishnan Anchery Non-Executive Director 

Dr. Anil Menon Non-Executive Director 

Mrs. Jitha Chummar 

Mr. Anu Thomas Cheriyan 

Mr. Kuriakkose Paul Kannanaikkal 

Non-Executive Director 

Non-Executive Director 

Non-Executive Director 

Mr. Rajesh Narayan Pillai Non-Executive Independent Director 

Mr. Vinod Manazhy Non-Executive Independent Director 

Mr. Abraham George Non-Executive Independent Director 

Dr. Habeeb Rahiman 

Mr. Thomas Jacob 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

  

The profile of Directors can be accessed on the Company’s website at http://www.sicapital.co.in/corporate-

leadership-team.php  

 

b. Attendance at the meeting of Board of Directors and last Annual General meeting 

Name of the Director No. of Board 

Meetings 

entitled to 

attend 

Attendance 

Meeting of Board 

of Directors 

28th Annual 

General Meeting 

Mr. Sreeram Gopinathan Nair 12 12 Y 

Mr. Thandassery Balachandran 

Ramakrishnan 

12 10 Y 

Dr. Anil Menon 12 10 Y 

http://www.sicapital.co.in/corporate-leadership-team.php
http://www.sicapital.co.in/corporate-leadership-team.php
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Mrs. Jitha Chummar 12 08 Y 

Mr. Rajesh Narayan Pillai 12 12 Y 

Mr. Vinod Manazhy 12 12 Y 

CA. Unnikrishnan Anchery 12 12 Y 

Mr. Abraham George 12 12 Y 

Dr. Habeeb Rahiman 12 11 Y 

Mr. Anu Thomas Cheriyan* 09 09 Y 

Mr. Thomas Jacob** 09 09 Y 

Mr. Kuriakkose Paul Kannanaikkal*** 01 01 NA 

Notes : 

1. *Mr.Anu Thomas Cheriyan was appointed as Additional director wef 13th June 2022 

2. ** Mr.Thomas Jacob was appointed as Additional Independent director wef 13th June 2022 

3. *** Mr. Kuriakkose Paul Kannanaikkal was appointed as Additional director wef 07th February 2023 

 

c. Other Directorships or Memberships in Committees 

 

Name of the Director Other 

Directorship 

Other Membership* Other Listed Entities in 

which he is a Director  
Member Chairman 

Mr. Sreeram Gopinathan Nair - - - - 

Mr. Thandassery Balachandran 

Ramakrishnan 

1 - - - 

Dr. Anil Menon 1 - - - 

Mrs. Jitha Chummar 2 1 - - 

Mr. Rajesh Narayan Pillai 1 1 1 Sungold Capital Limited 

–Non-ExecutiveDirector 

Mr. Vinod Manazhy 1 - - - 

CA. Unnikrishnan Anchery 13 1 - - 

Mr. Abraham George - - - - 

Dr. Habeeb Rahiman - - - - 

Mr. Anu Thomas Cheriyan 2 - - - 

Mr. Thomas Jacob - - - - 

Mr. Kuriakkose Paul Kannanaikkal - - - - 

*Membership(s)/ Chairmanship(s) of only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in all public 

limited companies have been considered. 

 

d. Board Meetings 

The details of Twelve Board Meetings held during the financial year 2022-23 are given below: 

Date Board Strength No. of Directors present 

04-04-2022 09 08 

13-05-2022 09 09 

13-06-2022 09 09 

02-08-2022 

12-08-2022 

11 

11 

10 

11 

10-10-2022 11 10 

08-11-2022 11 09 

30-11-2022 11 11 

14-12-2022 11 08 

05-01-2023 11 11 

07-02-2023 11 11 

07-03-2023 12 11 
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e. Skills / Expertise and Competence of Board of Directors 

 
Name of the Director Skills / Expertise / Competence 

Mr. Sreeram Gopinathan Nair Professional  / Industry knowledge and experience / Leadership / Ethics 

Mr. Thandassery Balachandran Ramakrishnan Professional  / Industry knowledge and experience / Leadership / Ethics  

Dr. Anil Menon Professional  / Industry knowledge and experience / Leadership / Ethics 

Mrs. Jitha Chummar Professional  / Industry knowledge and experience / Leadership / Ethics 

Mr. Rajesh Narayan Pillai Professional  / Industry knowledge and experience / Leadership / Ethics 

Mr. Vinod Manazhy Professional  / Industry knowledge and experience / Leadership / Ethics 

CA Unnikrishnan Anchery Professional  / Industry knowledge and experience / Leadership / Ethics 

Dr. Habeeb Rahiman Professional  / Industry knowledge and experience / Leadership / Ethics 
Mr. Abraham George Professional  / Industry knowledge and experience / Leadership / Ethics 

Mr. Anu Thomas Cheriyan Professional  / Industry knowledge and experience / Leadership / Ethics 

Mr. Thomas Jacob Professional  / Industry knowledge and experience / Leadership / Ethics 

Mr. Kuriakkose Paul Kannanaikkal Professional  / Industry knowledge and experience / Leadership / Ethics 

 

f. Confirmation on Independence 

Based on declarations received from independent directors and performance evaluation, the Board of Directors 

hereby opine that the independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in Securities and Exchange Board Of 

India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the 

management. 

g. Brief note on Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment:  Annexure – 1 

h. Board Committees 

      Your Company’s Board of Directors had constituted the following mandatory Committees to comply the 

      requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure              

      Requirements) Regulations, 2015 viz.:(i) Audit Committee; (ii) Nomination and RemunerationCommittee; (iii)   

       Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and Risk Management Committee 

 

 Audit Committee 

The Committee is mandated with the same terms of reference as specified in Section 177 of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with applicable Rules made thereunder. 

The Audit Committee of the Board provides reassurance to the Board on the existence of an effective internal 

control environment that ensures: 

a. efficiency and effectiveness of operations; 

b. safeguarding of assets and adequacy of provisions for all liabilities; 

c. reliability of financial and other management information and adequacy of disclosures. compliance with all 

relevant statutes. 

The role of the Committee includes the following: 

i. To oversee the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 

ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible; 

ii. To recommend the appointment, remuneration, terms of appointment and removal of Statutory Auditors, 

and to review the manner of rotation of Statutory Auditors; 

iii. To recommend the appointment, remuneration and removal of Cost Auditors, where necessary; 

iv. To approve transactions of the Company with related parties, including modifications thereto; 

v. To review and monitor the Statutory Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of the 

audit process; 

vi. To evaluate the Company’s internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

vii. To review with the management the following: 

a. Annual financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon before submission to the Board for 

approval; 

b. Quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval; 

viii. To review the following: 
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c. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 

d. Adequacy of internal control systems and the Company’s statement on the same prior to 

endorsement by the Board, such review to be done in consultation with the management, Statutory 

and Internal Auditors; 

e. Reports of Internal Audit and discussion with Internal Auditors on any significant findings and 

follow-up thereon; 

f. System / manner of maintenance, storage, retrieval, display, print out and security of books of 

account of the Company maintained in the electronic form; 

g. Functioning of Whistle Blower mechanism in the Company 

 

Composition, Name of members / Chairman, Meetings held and members present during the year 2022-23: During 

the financial year 2022-23, the Audit Committee met Six times on May 13, 2022, August 12, 2022, November 08, 

2022, November 30, 2022, February 07, 2023 and March 08, 2023 

 

Name of the Member  

Category 

No of Audit 

Committee 

meeting held 

No of Audit 

Committee 

meeting attended 

Mr. Rajesh Narayan Pillai 

 

Non- Executive Independent Director 

(Chairman)  

6 6 

Mr. Vinod Manazhy 

 

Non- Executive Independent Director 

(Member) 

 

6 6 

Mr. Abraham George 
Non- Executive Independent Director 

(Member) 
6 6 

 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Committee shall formulate for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and 

recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 

employees. 

 

The Committee shall identify the persons who are qualified to become Directors / Senior Management Personnel of the 

Company in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment, the remuneration 

including commission, perquisites and benefits payable to the Directors and their removal. It shall also carry out the 

evaluation of every Director’s performance. 

 

Composition, Name of Members / Chairman, Meetings held and Members present during the year 2022-23: 

During the financial year 2022-23, Nomination and Remuneration Committee met three times on May 13, 2022, 

October 10, 2022 and January 06, 2023. 

 

Name of the Member Category No of NRC 

meeting held 

No of NRC 

meeting attended 

Mr. T B Ramakrishnan 

 

Non-Executive Director 

(Member) 

3 3 

Mr. Vinod Manazhy 

 

Non- Executive Independent Director  

(Member) 

3 3 

Mr. Rajesh Narayan Pillai 

 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

(Chairman) 

3 3 
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Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

The Board of Directors has adopted a policy on comprising of criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes, 

and independence of Directors as laid down by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board in 

compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act. The Policy is available on Company’s website and can be 

accessed at 

http://www.sicapital.co.in/pdf/policies/Nomination%20&%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf  

Remuneration of Directors 

All the Directors are paid with sitting fees of Rs.1000/- (Rupees One Thousand only) for the Board Meetings attended 

by them. They have given waiver of sitting fees for all the Committee meetings in which they are members and certain 

Board Meetings. Directors were not granted stock options during the year under review. 

 

An amount of Rs.60,000/- was paid to Mr. Sreeram Gopinathan Nair, Managing Director, as travelling allowance 

during the financial year 2022-23. The amount was paid pursuant to the provisions of sections 196,197, 198 and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 read with Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013 and subject to the provisions of 

Articles of Association of the Company. The members of the Company have ratified his remuneration vide an ordinary 

resolution at the Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2020.  

 

The details of sitting fees paid to the directors during the financial year 2022-23 are given below: 

Name of the Director Sitting Fees  

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Mr. Sreeram Gopinathan Nair 0.14 

Mr. Thandassery Balachandran Ramakrishnan 0.12 

Dr. Anil Menon 0.12 

Mrs. Jitha Chummar 0.10 

Mr. Rajesh Narayan Pillai 0.14 

Mr. Vinod Manazhy 0.14 

CA Unnikrishnan Anchery 0.14 

Dr. Habeeb Rahiman 0.13 

Mr. Abraham George 0.14 

Mr. Anu Thomas Cheriya 0.09 

Mr. Thomas Jacob 0.09 

Mr. Kuriakkose Paul Kannanaikkal 0.01 

Total 1.36 

The Company has not granted any stock options to its Directors. 

 

Performance evaluation criteria for independent Directors 

The Company, on an annual basis, inter-alia evaluates performance of independent directors of the Company by Peer 

Review Process based on the following criteria - Participation in Board / Committee Meetings, Managing Relationship, 

Knowledge and Skill and other attributes viz. standards of ethics and integrity, independent judgement, awareness on 

corporate governance, up to date knowledge, adherence to code of conduct and maintenance of confidentiality.  

 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

Composition, Name of Members / Chairman, Meetings held and Members present during the year 2022-23: 

Name of Member Category Date of Meeting/ 

Attendance 

16-06-2022 

Dr. Habeeb Rahiman 
Non-Executive Independent Director  

(Chairman) 
Yes 

Mr. T B Ramakrishnan 
 

Non-Executive Director  
Yes 

http://www.sicapital.co.in/pdf/policies/Nomination%20&%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf
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(Member) 

Mr.Abraham George 

 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

(Member) 

Yes 

Name of Compliance Officer for 2022-23 :  Mr. Akhil T M Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Number of Investor complaints received / resolved / pending: One / One / NIL 

 

 

Risk Management Committee 

The objective of Risk Management at S.I. Capital & Financial Services Limited is to create and protect shareholder 

value by minimizing threats or losses, and identifying and maximizing opportunities. An enterprise-wide risk 

management framework is applied so that effective management of risks is an integral part of every employee’s job. 

 

Composition, Name of Members / Chairman, Meetings held and Members present during the year 2022-23: 

Name of Member Category Date of Meeting/ 

Attendance 

Date of Meeting/ 

Attendance 

04-04-2022 08-03-2023 

Mr. T B Ramakrishnan 

 

Non-Executive Director  

(Chairman) 
Yes Yes 

Mr.Sreeram Gopinathan 

Nair 
Managing Director (Member) Yes Yes 

Mr.Abraham George 

 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

(Member) 

Yes Yes 

    

 

Independent Directors’ Committee 

Composition, Name of Members / Chairman, Meetings held and Members present during the year 2022-23: 

Name of Member Category Date of Meeting/ 

Attendance 

30-03-2023 

Mr.Abraham George  

 

Non-Executive Independent Director  

(Chairman) 
Yes 

Mr.Vinod Manazhy 

 

Non-Executive Independent Director  

(Member) 

 

Yes 

   

Mr. Rajesh Narayan Pillai 
Non-Executive Independent Director  

(Member) 
Yes 

Dr. Habeeb Rahiman 

 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

(Member) 

Yes 

Mr. Thomas Jacob 
Non-Executive Independent Director 

(Member) 
Yes 

 

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

 

Annual General Meetings 

The date, time, venue of the Annual General Meetings held during preceding three years and the special resolutions 

passed thereat, are as follows: 
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Year Date Time Venue Special Resolutions Passed 

2021-22 16.09.2022 02.00 PM Through Video 

Conferencing/ Other 

Audio-Visual Means 

1. Change in name of the 

company and consequent 

change in Memorandum and 

Article of Association 

2020-21 24.09.2021 02.00 PM Through Video 

Conferencing/ Other 

Audio-Visual Means 

1. No Special Resolution was passed 

2019 - 20 30.09.2020 03.00 PM Through Video 

Conferencing/ Other 

Audio-Visual Means 

1. Alteration of Articles of Association 

2. Approval to borrow in excess of the 

paid-up share capital and free 

reserves and securities premium of 

the Company under Section 

180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 

2013 

3. Approval to create charge/mortgage 

over the properties of the Company 

for the purpose of borrowing in the 

terms of Section 180(1)(a) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 

 

Postal Ballot 

During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Company had conducted a postal ballot through remote e-voting process which 

concluded on Sunday, June 19, 2022 at 05:00 PM (IST) and the results of which were declared on June 20, 2022. 

 

In terms of Sections 110, 108 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to 

time, read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and in compliance with Regulation 44 

of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 

SS-2 and the provisions of the MCA Circulars, the Company had offered remote e-voting facility to its Members. The 

Company had appointed CDSL for facilitating e-voting to enable the Members to cast their votes electronically 

(hereinafter referred to as the "Remote e-voting"). 

 

The Portal for e-voting was opened for the Members from Saturday, May 21, 2022 at 09:00 AM (IST) and closed on 

Sunday, June 19, 2022 at 05:00 PM (IST). 

 

Accordingly, on the closure of e-voting period, CS K Sreekrishna Kumar, Scrutinizer, submitted his report dated June 

20, 2022 to the Chairman of the Company on June 20, 2022 and the following special business were considered as 

passed: - 

1. Shifting the Registered Office of the Company within the State of Tamil Nadu 

 

The voting pattern was as follows: 
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Item No.1 : Special Resolution - Alteration of object clause of Memorandum of Association 

Promoter/ 

Public 

No. of 

Shares held 

(1) 

No. of 

Votes 

polled (2)  

% of Votes 

polled 

outstanding 

shares (3) = 

[(2)/(1)]*10

0 

No. of Votes 

in favour 

(4) 

No. of 

Votes 

against 

(5) 

% of 

Votes in 

favour on 

votes 

polled 

(6)=[(4)/(

2)]*100 

% of 

Votes 

against 

on votes 

polled 

(7)=[(5)/(

2)]*100 

Promoter 16,10,780 16,10,780 100 16,10,780 - 100 - 

Public - 

Institutions 
9,200 - - - - - - 

Public - 

Non 

Institutions 

15,80,020 1101 0.070 1101 - 100 - 

Total 32,00,000 16,11,881 50.371 16,11,881 - 100 - 

 

There is no immediate proposal for passing any resolution through postal ballot. 

 

Means of Communication 

The quarterly / half yearly/ annual financial results of the Company were published in Business Line (English) and 

The Hindu (Tamil) in the respective quarters. The financial results, the annual reports of the Company and other 

corporate announcements were uploaded on the Company’s website: www.sicapital.co.in. 

 

General Shareholder Information 

Annual General Meeting 

Wednesday, September 27, 2023 at 11.30 A.M(IST) through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio-Visual Means 

 

Financial Year 

April 01, 2022 – March 31, 2023 

 

Dividend Payment Date 

NA 

 

Listing on Stock Exchange 

BSE Limited 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400001 

 

Payment of Listing Fees 

Annual Listing Fees for the year has been paid by the Company to BSE Limited. 

 

Stock Code 

Scrip Code: 530907 

ISIN: INE417F01017  

 

Payment of Depository Fees 

Annual Custody/ Issuer Fees have been paid by the Company based on the Invoices received from both depositories.  
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Stock Market Price Data* 

Month High Price 

(In Rs.) 

Low Price 

(In Rs.) 

Volume 

(No.) 

April 2022 - - - 

May 2022 31.50 30.00 702 

June 2022 32.95 32.95 25 

July 2022 34.50 34.50 2 

August 2022 34.50 34.50 50 

September 2022 36.20 34.50 102 

October 2022 36.70 36.70 25 

November 2022 - - - 

December 2022 38.40 38.40 10 

January 2023 - - - 

February 2023 39.80 39.80 2 

March 2023 40.40 36.34 13,164 

*This information is compiled from the data available on the website of BSE Limited. 

 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent  

SKDC Consultants Limited 

“Surya”, 35, Mayflower Avenue, Behind Senthil Nagar, Sowripalayam Road, Coimbatore – 641028 

Phone: 0422 4958995, 2539835 / 836        Email: info@skdc-consultants.com 

 

Share Transfer System 

As mandated by SEBI, the securities of the Company can be traded/ transferred only in dematerialized form. 

Shareholders holding shares in physical form are advised to avail the facility of dematerialization. 

 

Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2023 

 

S. 

No. 

Category of 

Shareholders 

No. of 

Share 

holders 

Total number 

of Shares 

% of 

Shareholding 

No. of 

Warrants 

% of Shareholding 

assuming full 

conversion of 

Warrants 

A Promoter & 

Promoter Group 

     

1 Indian 1 18,41,347 54.16 - 51.15 

2 Foreign - - - - - 

 Total (A1 + A2) 1 18,41,347 54.16 - 51.15 

       

B Public Shareholding      

1 Institutions 1 9,200 00.27 - 00.26 

2 Non-Institutions 1659 15,49,453 45.57 2,00,000 48.60 

 Total (B1 + B2) 1660 15,58,653 45.84 2,00,000 48.85 

       

C Non-Promoter Non-

Public 

- - - - - 

 Total (A + B + C) 1661* 34,00,000 100 2,00,000 100 

*Includes the number of warrant holder. 
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Distribution of Shareholding by size as on March 31, 2022 

Category (Based on 

Value) 

No. of 

Shareholders 

% Shareholding (In Rs.) % 

Up to 5,000 1290 77.24 2712710 7.98 

5,001 – 10,000 191 11.44 1570620 4.62 

10,001 – 20,000 72 4.31 1097500 3.23 

20,001 – 30,000 69 4.13 1746030 5.14 

30,001 – 40,000 10 0.60 355150 1.04 

40,001 – 50,000 10 0.60 471000 1.39 

50,001 – 1,00,000 16 0.96 1242620 3.65 

1,00,001 & Above 12 0.72 24804360 72.95 

Total 1679 100.00 30000000  

 

Dematerialisation of Shares 

Mode of Shareholding No. of Shares % 

CDSL 24,11,217 70.92% 

NSDL 1,67,533 4.93% 

Physical 8,21,250 24.15% 

Total 34,00,000 100 

 

 

Convertible Warrants 

 

The Company has allotted 4,00,000 Convertible Warrants of Rs. of Rs. 10/- each on the premium of Rs. 15/- to 

promoter group and Mr. Anu Thomas Cheriyan during the year under review. An amount equivalent to 25% of the 

Issue Price viz. Rs. 12.50 Lakhs was received by the Company. The Conversion date is within 18 months from the 

date of allotment, i.e., on or before October 03, 2023. The promoters have converted their warrant and allotted equaling 

number of Equity shares during the year.  During previous financial year 2021-22, the Company has not allotted any 

Convertible Warrants. The likely impact on the equity shareholding post conversion of Warrants is given above, as a 

part of Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2023. 

 

Credit Ratings and revisions 

N.A. 

 

Address for Correspondence 

 

Registrar & Transfer Agents Company 

SKDC Consultants Limited 

“Surya”, 35, Mayflower Avenue, Behind Senthil 

Nagar, Sowripalayam Road, Coimbatore – 641028 

Phone: 0422 4958995, 2539835 / 836         

E-mail ID: info@skdc-consultants.com 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

 27 First Floor, New scheme road Pollachi – 

642001, Tamil Nadu 

Ph: 04259 233304/05 

e-mail: info@sicapital.co.in 

 

Penalty imposed by Statutory Authority during last three years 

During Financial year 2020-21, regarding contravention of Para 5(I), Section V of Master Direction on Money 

Changing Activities dated January 1, 2016 (Updated as on March 29, 2019) and subsequent receipt of a show cause 

notice from the Reserve Bank of India highlighting the contravention and imposition of a monetary penalty of INR 

10,000/- against the company under Section 11(3) of FEMA, 1999. In this regard, the Company has paid the penalty 

of Rs. 10,000/- and took necessary steps to ensure compliance regarding the same in future. 
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Vigil Mechanism 

The Whistle Blower Policy & Vigil mechanism is available on company’s website and can be accessed at 

http://www.sicapital.co.in/pdf/policies/Whistle%20Blower%20Policy%20&%20Vigil%20Mechanism.pdf  

 

Certificate on Non-Disqualification of Directors 

 

The Certificate on Non-Disqualification of Directors of the Company obtained from Mrs. Liya Antony, Company 

Secretary in Practice is annexed as Annexure – 2. 

 

Fees paid to Statutory Auditor  

 

The Statutory Auditors were paid Rs.1.45 Lakhs during the year 2022-23; particulars of fee paid are given in Note 

31(i) of Audited Financial Statements forming part of this Annual Report 

 

Loan and advances to related parties / entities 

 

The particulars related to Loan to related entities are detailed in Note.39 of Audited Financial Statements forming part 

of this Annual Report 

 

Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013 

 

No. of Complaints filed / disposed during the year and pending as on end of financial year: NIL  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 31-08-2023 

Place : Thrissur 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 
 

Vinod Manazhy  

Chairman  

DIN: 08986929 

 

DECLARATION 

I, Sreeram Gopinathan Nair, Managing Director of the Company, hereby state that the members of board of directors 

and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct.  

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 31-08-2023 

Place : Thrissur 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

 

 

Sreeram Gopinathan Nair  

Managing Director  

DIN: 05143385 

 

  

http://www.sicapital.co.in/pdf/policies/Whistle%20Blower%20Policy%20&%20Vigil%20Mechanism.pdf
https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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Annexure – 1 

BRIEF NOTE ON DIRECTOR(S) SEEKING APPOINTMENT OR RE-APPOINTMENT 

(Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 
Name & DIN Dr. Anil Menon (DIN: 02390719) Mr. Unnikrishnan Anchery (DIN: 00007022) 

Date of Birth 01/03/1962 19/01/1956 

Age 71 Years 67 Years 

Experience More than 15 years of experience in stock 

broking business.  

Mr. Unnikrishnan Anchery is a Chartered Accountant 

based on Mumbai having more than 3 decades of 

experience in Audit and Taxation and   been playing 

advisory roles in several Listed and Unlisted entities. 

Qualifications MBBS Chartered Accountant 

Terms and Conditions of 

Appointment 

Non-Executive Non-Independent 

Director, liable to retire by rotation 

Non-Executive Non-Independent Director, liable to 

retire by rotation 

Details of remuneration 

sought to be paid and the 

remuneration last drawn 

Sitting fees for attending meetings of 

Board within the limit specified under the 

Companies Act, 2013 

Sitting fees for attending meetings of Board within the 

limit specified under the Companies Act, 2013 

Date of first appointment on 

Board and Date of Last 

Reappointment as Director 

October 31, 2019 

 
September 24, 2021 

December 28, 2021 

NIL 

Shareholding / Beneficial 

ownership in the Company 

NIL Nil 

Relationship with other 
Directors, Manager and other 

Key Managerial Personnel of 

the company 

Not related to any Director / Manager / 
Key Managerial Personnel except for his 

membership and directorship held in 

Sharewealth Securities Limited, the 

holding Company 

Not related to any Director / Manager / Key 
Managerial Personnel except for his membership and 

directorship held in Sharewealth Securities Limited, 

the holding Company 

No. of meetings of the Board 

attended during the period 

10 12 

Directorships held in other 

Companies 

Sharewealth Securities Limited Amalfi Properties Private Limited, AmdoshiWangani 

Services Private Limited, Hathway Investments 
Private Limited, Siena Traders Private Limited, 

Outlook Publishing (India) Private Limited, Fantasia 

Enterprises Private Limited, Gstaad Estates Private 

Limited, Kanyakumari Investment And Finance Pvt 
Lt, Gstaad Trading Company Pvt Ltd, Rajan Estates 

and Finance Pvt Ltd, Kaveri Construction Pvt Ltd 

Fortune Films Private Limited, Sharewealth Securities 

Limited 

Memberships/ Chairmanships 

of committees across other 

Companies 

NIL NIL 

Listed entities from which the 
proposed director has resigned 

in the past three years 

NIL NIL 

Skills and capabilities 

required for the role of the 

Director as identified by the 

Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee 

(NRC) and the manner in 

which the proposed person 

meets such requirements 

NA NA 
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Annexure – 2 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 

The Member 

S.I.Capital & Financial Services Limited 

CIN : L67190TZ1994PLC040490 

No.27, First Floor, New Scheme Road, Pollachi, Coimbatore Tamil Nadu 642001 
 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 

S.I.Capital & Financial Services Limited having CIN L67190TZ1994PLC040490 and having registered office at 

No.27, First Floor, New Scheme Road, Pollachi, Coimbatore Tamil Nadu 642001 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the 

Company’), produced before me/us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with 

Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 

Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the 

Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for 

the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing 

as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 

other Statutory Authority. 
 

S. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in 

Company 

1 Mr. Sreeram Gopinathan Nair 05143385 17/12/2020 

2 Mr. Thandassery Balachandran Ramakrishnan 01601072 31/10/2019 

3 CA Unnikrishnan Anchery 00007022 28/12/2021 

4 Dr. Anil Menon 02390719 31/10/2019 

5 Mrs. Jitha Chummar 02582004 20/10/2020 

6 Mr. Rajesh Narayan Pillai 07585805 22/07/2020 

7 Mr. Vinod Manazhy 08986929 10/12/2020 

8 Mr.Abraham George 09413342 28/12/2021 

9 Dr. Habeeb Rahiman 09413355 28/12/2021 

10 Mr. Anu Thomas Cheriyan 06461786 13/06/2022 

11 Mr. Thomas Jacob 08017693 13/06/2022 

12 Mr. Kuriakkose Paul Kannanaikkal 02188453 07/02/2023 

 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 

certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 

which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Liya Antony 

(Practicing Company Secretary)  

       Proprietor 

ACS:  39611, CP: 19314 

Peer Review Certificate no. 2482/2022   

Place: Ernakulam 

Date: 24/07/2023 

       UDIN: A039611E000669548 

 

 



 

 39 
  

 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

S.I.Capital & Financial Services Limited (“SI Capital”/ “the Company”) is a Non Deposit Taking Non-Systemically 

Important Non-Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI). It is a Subsidiary Company 

of Sharewealth Securities Limited. SI Capital also possess license to carry on the business of Full-Fledged Money 

Changer. The Company has a diversified lending portfolio covering the retail and commercial customers. 

 

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW 

Global  

Global real GDP is forecasted to grow by 2.6 percent in 2023, down from 3.3 percent in 2022. We expect further 

slowing to 2.4 percent in 2024. Economic growth is moderating under the weight of still high inflation and monetary 

policy tightening. Rather than a global recession, we expect a relatively subdued economic outlook. Growth is 

generally strongest in emerging Asian economies, and weakest in Europe and the US. 

 

Rapid monetary policy tightening over the last year or so led to weakening in global housing, bank lending and the 

industrial sector. However, this weakness has been more than offset by strength in other sectors, most notably service-

sector activities, which is visible in labor markets. Strong consumer spending and the fading impact of shocks of recent 

years have been difficult to assess, leading to ongoing forecast revisions. Nonetheless, recent data point to moderation 

of these positive trends, leading to slower global growth in the second half of 2023 and early 2024. 

 

Two key risks stand out regarding the global economic outlook. The first relates to inflation. While headline inflation 

has peaked in most economies, core inflation (excluding volatile items such as food and energy) has proven stickier 

and has not decisively peaked in most economies. Price pressures in the (global) goods and industrial sectors have 

receded, and if history is any guide, services prices should likewise moderate over the next quarters. However, the 

speed of this disinflationary process is hard to assess and will depend on a number of factors including weakening 

demand and pricing power of firms, labor market dynamics and the passthrough from past input price increases. The 

second risk relates to financial market stability. Central banks tightened monetary policy rapidly and this exposed 

weaknesses in the banking sector, and financial markets in general. While most indicators point to relative stability in 

global financial markets, long and variable lags in the passthrough of monetary policy mean more financial turmoil 

could be on the horizon. 

 

India 

India’s growth continues to be resilient despite some signs of moderation in growth.The Update notes that although 

significant challenges remain in the global environment, India was one of the fastest growing economies in the world. 

The overall growth remains robust and is estimated to be 6.9 percent for the full year with real GDP growing 7.7 

percent year-on-year during the first three quarters of fiscal year 2022/23. There were some signs of moderation in the 

second half of FY 22/23. Growth was underpinned by strong investment activity bolstered by the government’s capex 

push and buoyant private consumption, particularly among higher income earners. Inflation remained high, averaging 

around 6.7 percent in FY22/23 but the current-account deficit narrowed in Q3 on the back of strong growth in service 

exports and easing global commodity prices. 

 

The World Bank has revised its FY23/24 GDP forecast to 6.3 percent from 6.6 percent (December 2022). Growth is 

expected to be constrained by slower consumption growth and challenging external conditions. Rising borrowing costs 

and slower income growth will weigh on private consumption growth, and government consumption is projected to 

grow at a slower pace due to the withdrawal of pandemic-related fiscal support measures. 

 

“The Indian economy continues to show strong resilience to external shocks," said Auguste Tano Kouame, World 

Bank's Country Director in India. “Notwithstanding external pressures, India’s service exports have continued to 

increase, and the current-account deficit is narrowing.” 

 

Although headline inflation is elevated, it is projected to decline to an average of 5.2 percent in FY23/24, amid easing 

global commodity prices and some moderation in domestic demand. The Reserve Bank of India’s has withdrawn 
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accommodative measures to rein in inflation by hiking the policy interest rate. India’s financial sector also remains 

strong, buoyed by improvements in asset quality and robust private-sector credit growth. 

 

The central government is likely to meet its fiscal deficit target of 5.9 percent of GDP in FY23/24 and combined with 

consolidation in state government deficits, the general government deficit is also projected to decline. As a result, the 

debt-to-GDP ratio is projected to stabilize. On the external front, the current account deficit is projected to narrow to 

2.1 percent of GDP from an estimated 3 percent in FY22/23 on the back of robust service exports and a narrowing 

merchandise trade deficit. (Source: World bank publication) 

 

NBFC Industry 

The world seems to be recovering from the aftermath of the challenges posed in the last few years. Overall, despite the 

challenges, India has emerged as a bright spot in terms of economic growth amidst an outlook of global slowdown. 

Recently, The World Bank has reported that India is better positioned to navigate global headwinds and handle global 

spillovers, as compared to other major emerging economies. The uptick in demand during the festive season is another 

reason which makes us optimistic. 

 

CRISIL recently reported that riding on macroeconomic tailwinds, NBFCs are expected to see their AUM grow 11-

12% — a four-year high — to Rs 13 lakh crore by the end of this fiscal. Also, it is heartening to see that the RBI and 

policymakers recognise the contribution of NBFCs in supporting real economic activity and meeting the credit 

demand, especially reaching the unbanked. The recent RBI Scale based norms is another welcome step for the industry 

that will elevate the status of NBFCs in line with several other public sector NBFCs. Under these revised norms, we 

expect to attain more operational flexibility to meet the increasing credit demand and aid India's economic growth. 

 

A large number of our population remains largely unfamiliar with technology and face unique challenges in financial 

literacy. When it comes to serving the underbanked, Indian NBFCs and fintechs are leveraging technology and 

innovation to drive the financial inclusion agenda. 

 

According to ICRA's recent report, in 2023 non-bank lenders will focus on reviving growth by improving asset quality 

supported by increasing retail demand and liquidity. As part of the same, MSME sector and other developing sectors 

will witness increased participation from NBFCs. Also, with the introduction of 5G services in the country more 

NBFCs will tap into exploring Artificial Intelligence and Machine Learning for offering services or fullfledged 

applications. 

 

Gold loan industry has now gained respectability, as compared to 15-20 years back, and the persisting competition in 

the gold loan industry suggests it is a growing industry. While the sector will continue to face competition from banks, 

I believe NBFCs will continue to play a vital role due to its deeper reach, ability to offer more flexibility, personalised 

services and innovative digital solutions. Gold loans have played an important part during the pandemic and will 

continue to be an important source of credit to MSMEs, agri sector, small businesses, unorganised sector and this is 

also evident from the steady demand for gold loans. 

 

To keep this momentum of growth going in 2023 as well, it is important to address the key challenges faced by the 

NBFC sector. One such challenge is the recent revision of securitisation norms by RBI which state that loans with 

residual maturity of less than 365 days cannot be securitised. We do believe that this can have an impact on the level 

of securitisation, as gold loans, MFI loans are of shorter duration. (Source: RBI Reports, 2022) 

 

THE COMPANY – BUSINESS OVERVIEW & OUTLOOK 

S.I.Capital is a Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking NBFC and a Full Fledged Money Changer. Your 

company’s focus is to extend credit to unbanked sectors of the economy. The Company’s disbursements stood at 

510.28 lakhs during the year under review, an increase of 104%, reflecting the improved market conditions and focused 

efforts of the company. Compared to previous financial year, Gold, personal and business loans increased by 257% , 

106% and 473% respectively, an indicator of economy normalizing and overall positive market sentiment, while 

Vehicle loan declined by 5.61%. The income from forex business recorded a increase of 5.5% 
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S.I.Capital has been maintaining comfortable liquidity in the form of liquid investments and absence of leverage. The 

Company expects to benefit from repo hike and stringent credit norms on financial products of banks announced by 

RBI in 2023. The Company plans to focus on rural markets, where significant gaps in credit facility exists, as compared 

to semi-urban zones.  Rural inflation being well ahead of urban inflation and emphasis on electric vehicles remains a 

concern, but the forecast of another normal monsoon is a positive as is the government’s efforts to sustain and 

accelerate the startup environment.  

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

As an NBFC, SI Capital is exposed to liquidity, credit, interest and market risk. The Company has a strong risk 

management policy and will continue to invest in processes to build advance risk management.A strong governance 

framework ensures that the Board of Directors and its committees approve risk strategies and delegates credit 

authorities.  Risk assessment of customers is made at the time of initial appraisal for pricing and granting loans. 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

Company’s relation with employees & Industrial Relations remained cordial during the year under review, and no 

material developments occurred during that period. 21 employees were on the payrolls of the Company as on 31st 

March 2023. 

 

SWOT ANALYSIS 

Strength Well published brand image and well-defined management 

Weakness Presence of accumulated loss 

Opportunity Untapped market potential, continuing opportunities in unbanked sectors 

Threat High competition 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM 

The Company’s internal control system is properly placed and strengthened taking into account the nature of business 

and size of operations. Internal auditors are conducting periodic audits and bring out any deviations in internal audit 

procedures and their observations are periodically reviewed and compliance is ensured. The audit committee is 

properly reviewing and monitoring this internal audit process. 

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 
Particulars As on 31-03-2023  As on 31-03-2022 Explanation  

Current Ratio 4.30 6.82 N.A. 

Interest Coverage 

Ratio 

-1.78 -2.32 Debenture outstanding for the year 22-23 is 108.10 and last 

year it was nil. Further, ICD outstanding for the year 22-23 is 

25.17 but last year it was also Nil. Subsequently, the interest 

liability also increased. In addition to this the Loan Portfolio 

also increased from 250.17 to 510.28 This helped to reduce the 

loss and the Interest Coverage Ratio. 

Debt Equity Ratio 0.70 0.40 The Debenture and ICD liability for year is 108.10 and 25.17 

respectively but it was Nil in last year. The loss of the current 

financial year is also included in equity. Thus reduces the value 

of equity. Hence the ratio increased from 0.40 to 0.70. 

Operating Profit 

Margin (%) 

-24.30 -37.55 The loan size is increased to 510.28 as against 250.17 and the 

prompt recovery of EMI/Interest Collection helps to reduce 

losses in the current year. Hence the ratio increased from -

37.55 to -24.30 

Net Profit Margin (%) -10.65 -21.37 The operating profit and turnover have affected the Net Profit. 

Hence the Net Profit margin has increased. 

Return on Net worth -0.03 -0.05 Earnings on Net worth increased due to subsequent rise in 

Operating profit and resulted in reduction of loss. Hence the 

return on Net worth Ratio has increased. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To the Members of 

 

S.I. CAPITAL & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED 

 

Report on the Audit of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements  

 

Opinion 

 

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of S.I. CAPITAL & FINANCIAL 

SERVICES LIMITED (the company), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023, the Statement of 

Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of changes in equity and Statement of Cash Flow 

for the year ended and notes to financial statement including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information (herein referred to as “standalone financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 as amended (the “Act”) in the manner 

so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian accounting standards prescribed under section 

133 of the Act read with the companies(Indian Accounting standards) Rules 2015,as amended (“Ind AS”)and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2023,its loss 

including other  comprehensive income, change in equity and its cash flow for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion of the Financial Statement 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the 

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 

with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of standalone financial statements under the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 

standalone financial statements, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 

matters. 

 

1.Provision for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on Loans 

 

Management estimates impairment provision using Expected Credit loss model for the loan exposure. Measurement 

of loan impairment involves application of significant judgement by the management. The most significant judgements 

are: 

 

Timely identification and classification of the impaired loans, and 

 

Determination of probability of defaults (PD) and estimation of loss given defaults (LGD) based on the value of 

collaterals and relevant factors. 

 

The estimation of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial instruments involves significant judgements and estimates. 
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Following are points with increased level of audit focus: Classification of assets to stage 1, 2, or 3 using criteria in 

accordance with Ind AS 109; Accounting interpretations, modelling assumptions and data used to build and run the 

models; Measurement of individual borrowers’ provisions assessment of multiple economic scenarios. 

 

The disclosures made in the financial statements for ECL especially in relation to judgements and estimates by the 

Management in determination of the ECL. Refer note 43 to the standalone financial statements. 

 

Principle Audit Procedures: 

 

We evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of controls across the processes relevant to ECL. These controls, 

among others, included controls over the allocation of assets into stages including management’s monitoring of stage 

effectiveness, model monitoring including the need for post model adjustments, model validation, credit monitoring, 

individual/collective provisions and production of journal entries and disclosures. We tested the completeness of loans 

included in the Expected Credit Loss calculations as of 31 March 2023. We tested assets in stage 1, 2 and 3 on sample 

basis to verify that they were allocated to the appropriate stage. For samples of exposure, we tested the appropriateness 

of determining Exposure at Default (EAD), PD and LGD. We performed an overall assessment of the ECL provision 

levels at each stage including management’s assessment on Covid-19 impact to determine if they were reasonable 

considering the Company’s portfolio, risk profile, credit risk management practices and the macroeconomic 

environment. We assessed the adequacy and appropriate. 

 

We assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of disclosures in compliance with the Ind AS 107 in relation to ECL 

especially in relation to judgements used in estimation of ECL provision. 

 

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the Annual Report but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditors' 

report thereon.  

 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

  

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial 

statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 

(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 

financial position and financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity 

of the company in accordance with Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 

for safeguarding of the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 

and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 

for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 

the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error.  
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In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 

basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no 

realistic alternative but to do so.  

 

The board of directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected. 

  

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism 

throughout the audit. We also. 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act 2013, we are also responsible 

for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate financial control with reference to standalone 

financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of the such controls.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on company’s ability to continue as going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the standalone 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 

on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 

cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial 

statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 

our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements 

in the standalone financial statements. 
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 

during our audit.  

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31,2023 and are 

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 

public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 

the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

 

1) As required by Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020, issued by the Government of India in terms of sub-

section 11 of section 143 of the Companies Act 2013 we give in the Annexure- “A”, a statement on the matters 

specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order. 

2) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:  

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books.  

c) The Balance Sheet, The Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, Statement of 

changes in Equity and Statement of cash flow dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of 

account.  

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended 

including the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) amendment rules, 2019.  

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023, and taken on record 

by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023, from being appointed as 

a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company in 

reference to the financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer our separate report 

in “Annexure- B”. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements 

of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 

the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in 

accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us:  

i) The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financials. 

ii) The company did not have any long-term contract including derivative contracts for which there were any 

material foreseeable losses.  

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the company. 
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iv)  The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in 

the notes to the accounts,  

(a) no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 

any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 

foreign entities ‘Intermediaries’, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ‘Ultimate Beneficiaries ‘or provide any guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

(b) no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

‘Funding Parties’, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, 

whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’ or provide any guarantee, security 

or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(c) Based on audit procedures carried out by us, that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 

sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 

(d) The company has not declared or paid any dividends during the year and accordingly reporting on the 

compliance with section 123 of the companies Act,2013 is not applicable for the FY 2022-23.  

 

for Ayyar & Cherian  

Chartered Accountants  

Firm Registration No. 000284S 

 

 

Dijo Philip Mathew 

Membership No. 224930 

Place: Ernakulam 

Date:25-05-2023  

   UDIN: 23224930BGTNWJ4040 
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

 

Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the company on the standalone financial 

statements for the year ended 31st March 2023. 

 

1) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 

situation of Property Plant and Equipment & Intangible assets. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to me, all the fixed assets were physically verified 

during the year by the Management in accordance with a regular program of verification which, in my 

opinion, provides for physical verification of the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the 

information and explanation given to me, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than property where the company is the lessee and 

the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are 

held in the name of the company. 

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or 

intangible assets or both during the year. 

(e) According to the information and explanation given to me ,no such proceedings have been initiated or are 

pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

   

2) The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC’) and is in the business providing financial 

services and does not have any inventories. Accordingly, the Clause 3(ii) of the Order not applicable to the 

Company. 

3) As explained to us, the company has not made investments in nor provided any guarantee or security or granted 

any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered 

in the Register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (c) 

of the Order are not applicable to the Company.  

4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has complied with 

the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees 

given, as applicable. 

5) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from 

the public. Hence directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any 

other relevant sections of the Companies Act and rules framed thereunder are not applicable. 

6) According to the information and explanation given to us the Central Government has not prescribed the 

maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of the Section 148 of the Act for any of the products or 

services of the company. 

7) (a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident 

Fund, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the 

appropriate authorities.  

           (b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Income Tax,  Goods and 

Service Tax and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than 

six months from the date they became payable. 
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8)      According to the information and explanation given to us, the company does not have any such transactions that 

are not recorded in the books of accounts that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year 

in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

9)      In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted 

in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year. 

10)     (a)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has raised 

monies by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year, 

which were applied for the purposes for which those are raised. 

(b) i) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has made 

private placement of secured unlisted redeemable non-convertible debentures (the “debentures issue”) 

during the year and Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, have been complied with and the funds raised 

have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised. 

ii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has made 

preferential allotment of shares during the year and requirements of Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 

have been complied with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were 

raised. 

11) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the           

management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has 

been noticed or reported during the year. 

12) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order 

is not applicable to the Company. 

13) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is compliance with 

Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with related parties and the details of the 

related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Indian 

Accounting Standard. 

14) a) The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered during the audit. 

15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, 

the Company has not entered any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not 

commented upon. 

16) a). The Company is registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

b). The Company is registered as Non-Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Financial Company from the Reserve 

Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

c).  The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve 

Bank of India, therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

17) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, 

The company has incurred a cash loss of Rs 6.67 and 9.17 (Rs. in lakhs) in the financial year and in the 

immediately preceding financial year respectively. 

18) No such resignation of statutory auditor took place during the previous year. Therefore, the provisions of 

clause 3 (xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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19) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment 

of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our auditor’s knowledge of 

the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on 

the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 

sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

20) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, in respect of other than ongoing projects, the Company has not transferred unspent amount to a 

Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the 

financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. 

(b) No such remaining unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant 

to any ongoing project, has been transferred to special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section 

(6) of section 135 of the said Act. 

21) In our opinion consolidated financial statement is not applicable for the company. Therefore, the                 

provisions of clause 3 (xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

For Ayyar & Cherian 

Chartered Accountants  

Firm Registration No. 000284S 

 

 

Dijo Philip Mathew 

Membership No. 224930 

Place: Ernakulam 

Date: 25-05-2023 

UDIN: 23224930BGTNWJ4040  
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report  

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SI Capital & Financial Services Limited 

(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 

Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation 

and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based 

on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 

prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 

controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 

financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 

that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 

based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 51 
  

 
 

 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 

accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that 

could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 

not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 

periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the company maintained in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 

31, 2023 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

For Ayyar & Cherian 

Chartered Accountants  

Firm Registration No. 000284S 

 

 

Dijo Philip Mathew 

Membership No. 224930 

Place: Ernakulam 

Date: 25-05-2023 

UDIN: 23224930BGTNWJ4040  
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